
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE  
           SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

                                                 Tuesday, May 27, 2025 
                                             Lyndeborough Central School  

            6:30 p.m. 
 
Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/iks-kcrp-ybo 
Audio: +1 260-302-1098 PIN: 581 962 692# 
 
All videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check www.sau63.org for the latest 
information. 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Dennis Golding-Chair  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the 

interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments 
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent 
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE, KEB and BEDH.    

  
V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Business Administrator’s Report  
ii. Director of Student Support Services Report   

b. Letters/Information 
i. General Assurances  

 
VI. YTD REPORTING 

 
VII. POLICIES-1ST READING 

a. GBCD-R-Background Investigation and Criminal History Records Check-
Internal Controls 

b. IHBA-R-Programs for Pupils with Disability-Section 504-Notice of Parent and 
Student Rights 

c. ADB-Drug Free Workplace and Drug Free Schools 
d. JRA-Student Records and Access (FERPA) 

 
VIII. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
i. Budget Liaison 

 
X. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. Resignation-Amanda Guay-LCS-Aide 
b. Appointment-Ben Hoffstetter-District Facilities Manager   

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENTS   

 
XII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   

 
XIII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)   

i. Review the Nonpublic Minutes 
ii. Negotiations 



 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT  

 

INFORMATION: Next School Board Meeting-June 10, 6:30 PM at WLC 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  





A brief overview of the steps in the NH special education process follows:

Disability Suspected and School District Child Find Requirements

Anyone who suspects that a child may have a disability and need special education may refer the child for special

education consideration. School districts are required to have formal “Child Find” procedures to locate, evaluate and

count children who may have disabilities to ensure that eligible children are provided needed services (see page 7).

When a parent, teacher or other person suspects a child may have a disability and need special education, he/she may
make a referral to the school or LEA (local education agency, which is another term for the school district). If a parent

makes the referral, a best practice is to make the referral in writing, dating the letter, and explaining why the parent

believes the child may have a disability and needs special education. Parents will find it helpful to keep copies of all

letters, forms and reports for their records. If the referral comes from someone other than the parent, including from  the

child’s teacher, the parent must immediately be notified in writing that a referral has been made.

Within 15 business days after receiving the referral, the school must schedule a meeting of the IEP Team (parents are
members of the IEP team). This meeting is called the disposition of referral meeting. At this meeting the IEP Team

determines whether the child’s needs can be met using existing pupil support services available to all children (general

education interventions). Otherwise, the IEP team would determine that there is reason to suspect the child may have  a

disability and recommend what further testing is needed. The IEP Team must notify the parents, in writing, of their

decision. Written parental consent is needed before the school can evaluate the child. More information on referral  and

disposition of referral may be found on pages 7-8. Parents must be given 10 days written notice of any IEP team

meeting (5 days for a manifestation determination meeting), but they may agree to waive the 10-day notice if they  wish

to meet sooner.

Evaluation

When the IEP Team, including the parents, determines that a child needs to be evaluated for special education, they

also decide what testing is needed. To determine what additional testing is needed, the IEP Team first considers any

information they already have about the child. After the school district receives written parental consent, the child is

given a full and individualized evaluation that will provide information the IEP Team can use to determine if the child is

eligible for special education, as well as to identify the child’s educational needs (such as academic, communication,

developmental, motor, social/emotional, and vocational needs).

Testing must be done by trained and knowledgeable, certified or licensed evaluators, and completed within 60  calendar
days after the school has received written parental consent for the evaluations. During this timeframe, a  summary report

is developed and a meeting held to determine eligibility. At least 5 days before the meeting, the  parents are sent a copy

of the results, unless they waive this right. If the parents disagree with the school’s evaluation,  they may request an

independent educational evaluation (IEE) at public expense or they may obtain an IEE at their own  expense. More

information on evaluations and independent educational evaluations may be found on pages 9-11.

Determination of Eligibility and Disability Category

Based on the evaluation results, the IEP Team decides whether the child is eligible for special education. To be eligible,

the child must have a disability for which the child requires special education or special education and related services

to receive a FAPE. The child will then be identified with one or more of 14 disability categories defined in the NH

Standards. Once a child has an IEP, he/she is reevaluated at least once every three years to ensure the IEP Team

continues to have current information on which to base their decisions. More information on determination of  eligibility

may be found on page 11.

Development and Approval of the IEP

Within 30 days after the child is found eligible for special education, the IEP Team meets to develop an Individualized

Educational Program (IEP) for the child. Once a child has an IEP, it is reviewed and revised at least annually, and it must

be in place at the start of each school year. The IEP does not go into effect until it is signed (approved) by the parent







































 

 

GBCD-R  -  BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION AND CRIMINAL 
HISTORY RECORDS CHECK – INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 

Category:  Priority/Required by Law 
 
A. Purpose.   This procedural document outlines the responsibilities and protocols required 
relative to receipt, access, retention and destruction of criminal history record information 
obtained through the criminal history records check required under RSA 189:13-A and Board 
policy GBCD. 

B. Definitions.  Except as noted relative to New Hampshire law or Board policy, the 
definitions are based on those provided in the Criminal Justice Information Services Security 
Policy, (Version 5.9.2 as of August 2023) of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, Criminal 
Justice Information Services Division (the “CJIS Security Policy”). 

1. Criminal Justice Information (“CJI”) – refers to all of the data provided through the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation’s (“FBI”) criminal justice information system (“CJIS”) 
including, but not limited to biometric, identity history, biographic, property, and case/incident 
history data. 
 
2. Criminal History Records Information (“CHRI”) – is a subset of CJI, including: 
information, notations or other written or electronic evidence of an arrest, detention, complaint, 
indictment, information or other formal criminal charge relating to an identifiable person that 
includes identifying information regarding the individual as well as the disposition of any 
charges.  For purposes of this document GBCD-RG(1), CHRI will also include all of the 
information received through the New Hampshire State Police pursuant to RSA 189:13-a 
regarding the criminal history of a “covered person” (as defined in GBCD) whether or not such 
information is received by or through the CJIS. 
 
Due to its sensitive nature, and pursuant to regulations of the FBI, additional controls beyond 
those stated in RSA 189:13-a are required for the access, use and dissemination of CHRI. 
 
3. “Authorized Person” & “Authorized Personnel” - an individual (“Authorized Person”), or 
group of individuals (“Authorized Personnel”), who have been appropriately vetted through a 
national fingerprint-based record check and have been granted access to CHRI data.   However, 
pursuant to RSA 189:13-a, only the Superintendent or her/his “Designee” as defined under Board 
policy GBCD qualify as “Authorized Personnel”.  See Section D, below for requirements for 
training of Authorized Personnel. 
 
4. Electronic Media - includes memory devices in laptops and computers (hard drives) and 
any removable, transportable digital memory media, such as magnetic tape or disk, backup 
medium, optical disk, flash drives, external hard drives, or digital memory card. 
 
5. Physical Media - includes printed documents and imagery. 
 
C. Designated Points of Contact. 
Each Authorized Person may serve as a point of contact (“POC”) for communications with the 



 

 

FBI, or with the New Hampshire State Police, Justice Information Bureau, as the state CJIS 
agency (“CSA”), regarding such matters as (i) CHRI audits, (ii) changes to Authorized Personnel 
within the District, (iii) CHRI training, or (iv) CHRI security as required under state or federal 
law. 
 
In the event the District has only one Authorized Person, the Superintendent shall also designate 
a person other than the Authorized Person to serve as an “Alternate POC”.  Such Alternate POC 
will not have access to CHRI (i.e., the Alternate POC is not an “Authorized Person”), but may 
engage in communications as described in this paragraph, especially in the absence of an 
Authorized Person.  (Hereafter, the/a “POC” will mean and include any Authorized Person/nel as 
well as the Alternate POC.) In addition to communications with the CSA and FBI as described 
above, the POC will support policy compliance, including such matters as: 

1. Using the New Hampshire State Police Criminal Records Portal (the “NH Criminal 
Records Portal”), documentation of approved hardware, software, and firmware; 
 
2. Using the NH Criminal Records Portal, communications regarding how the District’s 
devices/network are connected to the Criminal Records Portal; and 
 
3. Implementation and compliance with security procedures. 
 
D. Training of Authorized Personnel. 
The District will ensure that each Authorized Person will complete the training relative to the 
reading and interpretation of criminal records as required under RSA 189:13-a.  Additionally, the 
District will ensure all persons authorized to have CHRI access will complete Security 
Awareness Training via CJIS Online immediately upon hire or appointment to access CHRI. 
 
The District will ensure all Authorized Personnel complete recertification of Security Awareness 
Training every twelve (12) months. 
 
The Alternate POC will keep on file the Security Awareness Training certificate on all 
authorized personnel. 

E. Termination or other Changes to Authorized Personnel.  
Upon an Authorized Person’s separation/termination from employment with the District, a POC 
shall, as soon as practicable, terminate the separated employee’s access to systems or physical 
areas that would allow access to CHRI. 
 
In the event that there are any other additions or reductions to district employees assigned or to 
be assigned as Authorized Personnel, the POC will notify the CSA of the personnel changes 
within seven business days. 
 
Each POC will keep an updated list of the Authorized Personnel and POC that will be available 
to the CSA or FBI. 

F. Access to, and Security, Storage, Retention and Destruction of CHRI. 

1. Access to and Storage of CHRI.  Authorized Personnel as defined in section B.3, above, 
are the only persons allowed to access, view, possess, or otherwise handle CHRI whether in 



 

 

physical or electronic media.  Any other dissemination of CHRI in any format or medium is 
strictly forbidden. 
 
The Superintendent shall designate an area, a room, or a storage container as a controlled area for 
the purpose of day-to-day access to or storage of CHRI on physical media.  CHRI on physical 
media will be stored at all times in a locked drawer/container at the Central Office that is only 
accessible to the Authorized Personnel.  CHRI in physical media shall not be removed from the 
designated area except for destruction as provided below.  
 
Any room, area or storage container in which CHRI is contained on physical media shall be 
locked whenever unattended by Authorized Personnel. 
 
Documents or other physical media containing CHRI, and any devices through which CHRI on 
electronic media may be viewed, will be positioned at all times in such a way as to prevent 
persons who are not Authorized Personnel from accessing or viewing CHRI. 
 
In no event shall any physical media containing CHRI be copied or transferred to any electronic 
media.  Similarly, CHRI received and/or accessed through the New Hampshire State Police 
Criminal Records Portal (the “Criminal Records Portal”), shall not be transferred to physical 
media (e.g., printed), and shall not be saved or transferred onto any other electronic media or 
device. 
 
Additionally, if CHRI is received or accessed through the Criminal Records Portal, the District 
will at all times use electronic media and network infrastructure security methods consistent with 
the CJIS Security Policy and/or as otherwise required by the CSA or FBI.   
 
The District shall take steps necessary to prevent and protect the District from physical, logical, 
and electronic breaches consistent with the District’s Data Governance and Security Plan and 
Board policy EHAB. 
 
In no event shall a “personal device” or “personally owned information system” be used to 
access, view, process, store or transmit CHRI.   For the purposes of this policy, “personal 
device” or “personally owned information system” shall include any portable technology, 
including, but not limited to, mobile wireless devices (e.g., Blackberries, cellphones, smart 
phones, tablets, etc.), personal laptops, personal desktop computers, or portable storage device 
(e.g., flash drive, SD card, DVD, CD, air card, etc.).  

2. CHRI Exempt from Public Disclosure.  CHRI is exempt from disclosure to the public 
under RSA 91-A:5, IV.  See also, Section 4.2.1 of the CJIS Security Policy, stating that CHRI 
obtained from the Interstate Information Index is only accessible for an authorized purpose; and 
FOIA(b)(7)(c), stating that matters which are an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy are 
exempt from disclosure. 

3. Destruction of CHRI. The District will properly sanitize or destroy physical media or 
electronic media with CHRI within 60 days of receipt by the District. All CHRI will be 
destroyed as set out below.  

a. Physical media with CHRI shall be destroyed by one of the following:    



 

 

i. shredding by Authorized Personnel using District-issued cross-cut shredders;   
 

ii.placed in locked shredding bins for a private contractor approved by the Superintendent to come 
on-site and shred, witnessed by District personnel throughout the entire process; or 
 

iii. incineration using District incinerators or, if conducted by non-Authorized Personnel offsite, 
witnessed by the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee. 
 
b. CHRI on electronic media shall be removed or destroyed by one of the below methods, 
and computers and other digital or electronic devices or systems that have been used to process, 
store, or transmit sensitive information shall not be released from the District‘s direct control 
until all CHRI has been destroyed using one of the prescribed methods: 

i. Overwriting (at least three times); 
 

ii.Degaussing (magnetic or electric removal of magnetic data); or 
 

iii. Physical destruction (i.e., dismantling by methods of crushing, disassembling, etc., ensuring that 
the platter or other storage device has been physically destroyed so that no data can be 
extracted). 
 
B. Reporting Information Security Events. 
The District will report information security events/cybersecurity incidents involving CHRI 
consistent with Board policy EHAB. Additionally, the District shall promptly report incident 
information to appropriate authorities, including the New Hampshire State Police CSA 
Information Security Officer (ISO).   

C. Violations - Misuse of CHRI. 
In the event of misuse of CHRI, or violations of any provision of (a) these Internal Controls and 
Procedures, or (b) the CJIS Security Policy, the District will subject the employee to disciplinary 
action per Board policy and procedures, up to and including the termination of their employment, 
and the employee may face criminal prosecution.  
 

 
 Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy, nor should they be taken 

as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal 
authority. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy. 
 
NH Statutes Description 
RSA 189:13-a School Employee and Designated School Volunteer Criminal 

History Records Check 
RSA 189:13-b School Bus Driver & Transportation Monitor Criminal 

History Records Check 
RSA 189:13-c Credentialing Applicant and Candidate Criminal History 

Records Check 
RSA 632-A:10 Prohibition from Child Care Service of Persons Convicted of 

Certain Offenses 
NH Dept of Ed Regulation Description 



 

 

Code of Conduct for New Hampshire 
Educators 

Code of Conduct for New Hampshire Educators 

Federal Regulations Description 
28 CFR Part 20 Criminal Justice Information Systems 
Cross References 
Code Description 
EEAE School Bus Safety Program 
EEAE-R(1) School Bus Safety Program - Safety Guidelines for 

Parents/Guardians of Students Using School Buses 
EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing – School Bus Drivers 

and Contracted Carriers 
EEAEA-R(1) Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing – School Bus Drivers 

and Contracted Carriers - Drug and Alcohol Testing for 
School Bus and Commercial Vehicle Drivers 

EHB Data/Records Retention 
EHB-R(1) Data/Records Retention  - Local Records Retention Schedule 
GADA Employment References and Verification 
GBCE Training and Information Relative to Child Sexual Abuse 

Prevention 
GDF Hiring of Non-Certified Personnel 
IJOC Volunteers 
IJOC-R(1) Volunteers  - Confidentiality Agreement 
JLIF Receipt and Use of Sex Offender Registry Information 
JLIF-R(1) Receipt and Use of Sex Offender Registry Information 
 
Legal Reference: 
 
First Reading:   
Second Reading:  
Final Adoption:  
Revision: 
 



 

 

IHBA-R – PROGRAMS FOR PUPILS WITH DISABILITIES –SECTION 
504-NOTICE OF PARENT & STUDENT RIGHTS 
 

 
Category: Priority/Required by Law  
 
Notice of Parent and Student Rights under Section 504 Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, commonly referred to as “Section 504,” is a nondiscrimination 
statute enacted by the United States Congress. The purpose of the act is to prohibit 
discrimination and to ensure that disabled students have educational opportunities and benefits 
comparable to those provided to non-disabled students. 
 
An eligible student under Section 504 is a student who (a) has, (b) has a record of having, or (c) 
is regarded as having a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major life 
activity such as, but not limited to learning, self-care, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, 
breathing, working, and performing manual tasks. 
 
Dual Eligibility: Many students will be eligible for education services under both Section 504 
and the Individuals With Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). Students who are eligible under 
IDEA have many specific rights that are not available to students who are eligible solely under 
Section 504. An explanation of procedural safeguards for New Hampshire students eligible for 
services under the IDEA may be found in the "New Hampshire Special Education Procedural 
Safeguards Handbook available through the school district’s Student Support Services 
Department and sets out the rights assured by IDEA. 
 
It is the purpose of this notice to set out the rights assured by Section 504 to those disabled 
students who do not qualify under IDEA. The enabling regulations for Section 504 as set out in 
34 CFR Part 104 provides parents and/or students with the following rights:  

1. You have a right to be informed by the school district of your rights under 
Section 504. (34 CFR §104.32) 
  

2. Your child has the right to an appropriate education designed to meet his/her 
individual educational needs as adequately as the needs of non-disabled students 
are met. (34 CFR §104.33) 
  

3. Your child has the right to free educational services except for those fees that are 
also imposed on non-disabled students or their parents. Insurers and similar third 
parties are not relieved from an otherwise valid obligation to provide or to pay for 
services provided to a disabled student. (34 CFR §104.34) 
  

4. Your child has a right to placement in the least-restrictive environment. (34 CFR 
§104.34) 
  

5. Your child has a right to facilities, services, and activities that are comparable to 
those provided for non-disabled students. (34 CFR §104.34) 
  



 

 

6. Your child has a right to an evaluation prior to an initial Section 504 placement 
and prior to any subsequent significant change in placement. (34 CFR §104.34) 
  

7. Testing and other evaluation procedures must conform to the requirements of 34 
CFR §104.35 as to validation, administration, areas of evaluation, etc. The district 
shall consider information from a variety of sources, such as assessment, aptitude 
and achievement tests, teacher recommendations, physical condition or medical 
reports, student grades, progress reports, parent observations, and anecdotal 
reports. (34 CFR §104.35) 
  

8. Placement decisions must be made by a group of persons (i.e., the Section 504 
Committee) including persons knowledgeable about your child, the meaning of 
the least-restrictive environment, and comparable facilities. (34 CFR §104.36) 
  

9. If eligible under Section 504, your child has a right to periodic reevaluations, 
generally every three years. (34 CFR §104.35) You have the right to notice prior 
to any action by the district in regard to the identification, evaluation, or 
placement of your child. (34 CFR §104.36) 
  

10. You have the right to examine relevant records. (34 CFR §104.36) 
  

11. You have the right to an impartial hearing with respect to the district’s actions 
regarding your child’s identification, evaluation, or educational placement, with 
the opportunity for parental participation in the hearing and representation by an 
attorney. (34 CFR §104.36) 
  

12. If you wish to challenge the actions of the district’s Section 504 Committee in 
regard to your child’s identification, evaluation, or educational placement, you 
should file a written Notice of Appeal with the district’s Section 504 Coordinator 
within 30 calendar days from the time you receive written notice of the Section 
504 Committee’s action(s). 
 

Student Support Services Office 
192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH 03082  
TEL: 603-732-9175  

 
A hearing will be scheduled before an impartial hearing officer, and you will be notified in 
writing of the date, time, and place for the hearing. 
 

13. If you disagree with the decision of the impartial hearing officer, you have a right 
to a review of that decision by a court of competent jurisdiction. (34 CFR 
§104.36) 
  

14. On Section 504 matters other than your child’s identification, evaluation, and 
placement, you have a right to file a complaint with the district’s Section 504 
Coordinator (or designee), who will investigate the allegations to the extent 
warranted by the nature of the complaint in an effort to reach a prompt and 



 

 

equitable resolution. 
  

15. You also have the right to file a complaint with the Office of Civil Rights. The 
address of the Regional Office with jurisdiction in New Hampshire is: 
 

Office for Civil Rights 
U.S. Department of Education, 
5 Post Office Square 
Boston, Massachusetts 02109-3921 
Tel: (617) 289-0111 
TTY: (877) 521-2172 
FAX: (617) 289-0150 
OCR.Boston@ed.gov 
Web Contact: www.ed.gov 
 
 
 
 
   
 
  
Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this 
policy, nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to 
enact this policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are 
provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy. 
 
NH Statutes Description 
RSA 186-C Special Education 
RSA 186-C:10-a Retention of Individualized Education Programs 
NH Dept of Ed Regulation Description 
N.H. Code Admin. Rules Ed 1100 Standards for the Education of Students With Disabilities 
Federal Regulations Description 
34 CFR 104 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap 
34 CFR 300 et seq. Assistance to the States for the Education of Children with 

Disabilities 
Federal Statutes Description 
20 U.S.C. § 1400-1417 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
20 U.S.C. §§1400 et seq. Individuals with Disabilities Education Law 
29 U.S.C. 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) 
42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq. Title II of The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
Cross References 

Code Description 
AC Nondiscrimination, Equal Opportunity Employment, and 

Anti-Discrimination Plan 
AC-R(2) Nondiscrimination, Equal Opportunity Employment, and 

Anti-Discrimination Plan - Annual Notice of Contact 
Information 



 

 

ACE Procedural Safeguards: Nondiscrimination on the Basis of  
Disability 

IHBAA Evaluation Requirements for Children With Specific 
Learning Disabilities 

IHBAB Special Education Evaluations 
IHBAC Developmental Delay as Qualifying Disability 
IHBAM District Special Education Policy and Procedures Manual 
IKFC Alternative Diploma for Students with Cognitive Disabilities 
JICD Student Discipline and Due Process 
JICD-R(1) Student Discipline and Due Process  - Memorandum of 

Understanding 
JICK Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention 
JICK-R(1) Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention - Report Form 
JICK-R(2) Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention - Bullying Report Form 
JICK-R(3) Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention - School Board 

Notification of Bullying Report 
 
 
 
Start the policy language here. 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

 
First Reading:   
Second Reading:  
Final Adoption:  
Revision: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 1 of 8 
 

Category:  Recommended  Mentioned Policies: ILD 
  

A. General Statement.  It is the policy of the School Board that all school district personnel 
will follow the procedures outlined herein as they pertain to the maintenance of student 
records.  Furthermore, it is the policy of the School Board that all school district 
personnel will follow the provisions of the Family Educational Rights Privacy Act 
(FERPA) and its corresponding regulations. 
  

B. "Education Record".  For the purposes of this policy and in accordance with FERPA, 
the term “educational record” is defined as all records, files, documents and other 
material containing information directly related to a student; and maintained by the 
school district; or by such other agents as may be acting for the school district.  Such 
records include, but are not limited to, completed forms, printed documents, handwriting, 
videotape, audiotape, electronic or computer files, film, print, microfilm and/or 
microfiche.  Educational records do not include records of instructional, supervisory, and 
administrative personnel and educational personnel ancillary thereto which are in the sole 
possession of the maker thereof and which are not accessible or revealed to any other 
person except a substitute.  
  

C. "Directory Information".  For the purposes of this policy, and in accordance with the 
provisions of FERPA and New Hampshire RSA 189:1-e, the term “directory 
information” means: 
  

1. Student name(s), address(es), telephone number(s), and date(s) of enrollment; 
  

2. Parent/guardian name(s) and address(es); 
  

3. Student grade level, enrollment status and dates of attendance; 
  

4. Student photograph(s); 
  

5. Student participation in recognized school activities and sports; 
  

6. Athletic team member weight and height; 
  

7. Post-high school plans; and 
  

8. Student diploma(s), certificate(s), award(s), or honor(s) received. 
Except for elements of a student’s directory information which the student’s parent or an 
eligible student has notified the District not to disclose, the District may release or disclose 
student directory information without prior consent of the student’s parent/eligible student.  
Within the first three weeks of each school year, the District will provide notice to 
parents/eligible students of their rights under FERPA and that the District may publish 
directory information without their prior consent.  Parents/eligible students will be given 
until September 30th to notify the District in writing of any or all directory information 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 2 of 8 
 

items that they refuse to permit the District to release or disclose.  Notice from a 
parent/eligible student that any or all directory information shall not be released will only 
be valid for that school year and must be re-issued each school year.  
 

D. "Personally Identifiable Information".  “Personally identifiable information” is 
defined as data or information which makes the individual who is the subject of a record 
known, including information such as: a student’s name; the student’s or student’s 
family’s address; the name of the student’s parent or other family members; a personal 
identifier such as a student’s Social Security number; the student’s date of birth, place of 
birth, or mother’s birth name.  “Personally identifiable information” also includes other 
information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student; that 
would: allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal 
knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with a reasonable 
certainty; or other information requested by a person whom the District reasonably 
believes knows the identity of the student to whom the education record relates. 
  

E. FERPA Definition of "Parent".  For the purposes of this policy, the term parent shall 
mean and include a natural. parent, a guardian, or an individual acting as a parent in the 
absence of a parent or guardian, and all of their plural or singular forms. 
  

F. Annual Notification/Rights of Parents and Eligible Students.  Within the first four 
weeks of each school year the District will publish notice to parents and eligible students 
of their rights under State law, Federal law, and this policy.  The District will send a 
notice listing these rights home with each student.  The notice will include: 
  

1. The rights of parents or eligible students to inspect and review the student’s 
education records; 
  

2. The intent of the District to limit the disclosure of information in a student’s 
record, except: (a) by the prior written consent of the parent or eligible student; 
(b) as directory information; or (c) under certain, limited circumstances, as 
permitted by law; 
  

3. The right of a student’s parents or an eligible student to seek to correct parts of the 
student’s educational records which he/she believes to be inaccurate, misleading, 
or in violation of student rights; this includes a hearing to present evidence that 
the records should be changed if the District decides not to alter them according to 
the parent’s or eligible student’s request; 
  

4. The right of any person to file a complaint with the United States Department of 
Education if the District violates FERPA; and 
  

5. The procedure that a student’s parents or an eligible student should follow to 
obtain copies of this policy. 
  



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 3 of 8 
 

G. Procedure To Inspect Education Records.  Parents or eligible students may inspect and 
review that student’s education records.  In some circumstances, it may be more 
convenient for the record custodian to provide copies of records. 
 
Since a student’s records may be maintained in several locations, the school Principal 
may offer to collect copies of records or the records themselves from locations other than 
a student’s school, so that they may be inspected at one site.  If parents and eligible 
students wish to inspect records where they are maintained, school Principals will 
determine if a review at that site is reasonable. 
 
Although not specifically required, in order that a request is handled in a timely manner, 
parents/eligible students should consider submitting their request in writing to the school 
Principal, identifying as precisely as possible the record or records that he/she wishes to 
inspect.  The Principal will contact the parents or the eligible student to discuss how 
access is best arranged for their inspection or review of the records (copies, records 
brought to a single site, etc.). 
 
The Principal will make the needed arrangements as soon as possible and notify the 
parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.  This 
procedure must be completed within fourteen (14) days of when the request for 
access is first made.  Note: the fourteen (14) day limit is required under New Hampshire 
RSA 189:66, IV, in contrast to the forty-five (45) day period otherwise allowed under 
FERPA. 
 
If for any valid reason such as the parent’s working hours, distance between record 
location sites or the parent or student’s health, a parent or eligible student cannot 
personally inspect and review a student’s education records, the Principal may arrange 
for the parent or eligible student to obtain copies of the records. 
 
When records contain information about students other than a parent’s child or the 
eligible student, the parent or eligible student may not inspect and review the records of 
the other students.  If such records do contain the names of other students, the Principal 
will seek consultation with the Superintendent and/or the District’s attorney to determine 
how best to proceed.  Where practicable, it may be necessary to prepare a copy of the 
record which has all personally identifiable information on other students redacted, 
with the parent or eligible student being allowed to review or receive only a copy of the 
redacted record.  Both the original and redacted copy should be retained by the 
District. 
 

H. Procedures To Seek To Correction of Education Records.  Parents of students or 
eligible students have a right to seek to change any part of the student’s records which 
they believe is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of student rights.  FERPA and its 
regulations use both "correct/ion" and "amend."  For the purposes of this policy, the two 
words (in all of their respective forms) shall mean the same thing unless the context 
suggests otherwise.  To establish an orderly process to review and correct (amend) the 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 4 of 8 
 

education records for a requester, the following processes are established. 
  

1. First-level decision. When a parent or eligible student finds an item in the 
student’s education records that he/she believes is inaccurate, misleading or in 
violation of student rights, he/she should submit a written request asking the 
building Principal to correct it.  If the records are incorrect because of clear error 
and it is a simple matter to make the change, the Principal should make the 
correction.  If the records are changed to the parent’s/eligible student’s 
satisfaction, both parties shall sign a document/form stating the date the records 
were changed and that the parent/eligible student is satisfied with the correction. 
 
If the Principal believes that the record should not be changed, he/she shall: 
  

a. Provide the requester with a copy of the questioned records at no cost; 
b. Ask the parent/eligible student to initiate a written appeal of the denial of 

the request for the change, which will be forwarded to the Superintendent; 
c. Forward the written appeal to the Superintendent; and 
d. Inform the parents/eligible student that the appeal has been forwarded to 

the Superintendent for a decision. 
2. Second-level decision.  If the parent/eligible student wishes to challenge the 

Principal’s decision to not change the student record, he/she may appeal the 
matter to the Superintendent.  The parent/eligible student shall submit a written 
request to the Principal asking that the matter be appealed to the Superintendent.  
The Principal will forward the appeal to the Superintendent. 
 
The Superintendent shall, within ten (10) business days after receiving the appeal: 
  

a. Review the request; 
b. Discuss the request with other school officials; 
c. Make a decision whether or not to make the requested correction to the 

educational record; 
d. Schedule a meeting with the parents/eligible student if the Superintendent 

believes such a meeting would be necessary; and 
e. Notify the parents/eligible student of the Superintendent’s decision on 

their request to correct the student’s educational record. 
If the Superintendent determines the records should be corrected, he/she will make 
the change and notify the parents/eligible student in writing that the change has been 
made.  The letter stating the change has been made will include an invitation for the 
parent/eligible student to inspect and review the records to verify that the records 
have been corrected and the correction is satisfactory.  If the records are changed to 
the parent’s/eligible student’s satisfaction, both parties shall sign a document/form 
stating the date the records were changed and that the parent/eligible student is 
satisfied with the correction. 
 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 5 of 8 
 

If the Superintendent determines the records will not be corrected, he/she will notify 
the parents/eligible student in writing of his/her decision.  Such a letter will also 
notify the parents/eligible student of their right to an appeal hearing before the 
School Board. 

3. Third-level decision.  If the parents or eligible student are not satisfied with the 
Superintendent’s decision, they may submit a written request for a hearing before 
the School Board.  The parents/eligible student shall submit the request for a 
hearing with the Superintendent within ten (10) business days of the date of the 
Superintendent’s written decision in Section H.2, above.  The Superintendent will 
inform the School Board of the request for a hearing and will work with the School 
Board to schedule a hearing within forty five (45) days of receipt of the request.  
Once the meeting is scheduled, the Superintendent will inform the parents/eligible 
student in writing of the date, time, and place of the hearing. 
 
The hearing will be held in a non-public session consistent with the provisions of 
RSA 91-A:3, unless the parent/eligible student requests that the hearing be held in 
public session. The School Board will give the parent/eligible student a full and fair 
opportunity to present evidence relevant to the issues raised under their request.  
The parents/eligible students may be assisted or represented by one or more 
individuals of their own choice, including an attorney. 
 
The School Board will issue its final decision in writing within thirty (30) days of 
the hearing, and will notify the parents/eligible student thereof via certified mail, 
return receipt requested.  The School Board will base its decision solely on the 
evidence presented at the hearing.  The School Board’s written decision will 
include a summary of the evidence and the reasons for its decision. 
 
If the School Board determines that the student record should be corrected, it will 
direct the Superintendent to do so as soon as possible.  The Superintendent will 
then contact the parents/eligible student for a meeting so they can review and 
inspect the records to verify that they have been corrected.  At this meeting, both 
parties shall sign a document/form stating the date the records were corrected and 
that the parent/eligible student is satisfied with the correction. 
 
The School Board’s decision will be final, except as otherwise provided by law. 

4. Parent/Eligible Student Explanation to be Included in Record.  
Notwithstanding the resolution of any request to correct a student's record(s), in 
accordance with section (a)(2) of FERPA, a parent or eligible student may insert 
into that student’s educational record a written explanation regarding the content of 
the record. 

 
I. Disclosure of Student Records and Student Information.  In addition to directory 

information, the District may disclose student records and student information without 
consent to the following parties on the condition that the recipient agrees not to permit 
any other party to have access to the released information without the written consent of 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 6 of 8 
 

the parents of the student, and under the conditions specified. 
  

1. School officials with a legitimate educational interest.     A school official may 
only access student records when the school official has a legitimate educational 
interest. 

a. "School officials” means persons employed or used by the District to 
perform institutional services and functions, and includes such persons as 
teachers, instructional aides, administrators, including health or medical 
staff, school resource officers, and third parties such as contractors, 
attorneys, consultants, and volunteers.  Such third party school officials 
may access student records provided such persons are: 
  

1. Under the District’s direct control with respect to the use and 
maintenance of education records; and 
  

2. Prohibited from disclosing the information to any other party 
without the prior written consent of the parent/eligible student, or 
as otherwise authorized by law. 
  

b. “Legitimate educational interest” includes performing a task or engaging 
in an activity related to (i) one’s regular duties or professional 
responsibilities, (ii) a student’s education, (iii) the discipline of a student, 
(iv) a service to or benefit for a student, (v) measures to support student 
success, and (vi) the safety and security of the campus. 

2. Other schools into which a student is transferring or enrolling, upon condition 
that the student’s parents be notified of the transfer, receive a copy of the record if 
desired, and have an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the content of the 
record. This exception continues after the date that a student has transferred 

3. Officials for audit or evaluation purposes. 
4. Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid. 
5. Organizations conducting certain studies for, or on behalf of, the School District.  

Student records or student information will only be provided pursuant to this 
paragraph if the study is for the purpose of: developing, validating or 
administering predictive tests; administering student aid programs; or improving 
instruction.  The recipient organization must agree to limit access to the 
information and to destroy the information when no longer needed for the purpose 
for which it is released. Additionally, any such studies must comply with the 
provisions of Board policy ILD. 

6. Accrediting organizations. 
7. Judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, upon condition that parents and the 

student are notified of all such orders or subpoenas in advance of compliance 
therewith by the District, except when a parent is a party to a court proceeding 
involving child abuse or neglect or dependency.  The Principal shall consult with 
the Superintendent and legal counsel as needed to ensure compliance with the 
judicial order and applicable law. 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 7 of 8 
 

8. Health and safety emergencies.  
 

J. Maintenance of Student Records and Data.  The Principal of each building is 
responsible for record maintenance, access, and destruction of all student records.  All 
school district personnel having access to records shall place great emphasis upon privacy 
rights of students and parents. 
 
All entries into student records must be dated and signed by the person accessing such 
records. 
 
The principal will ensure that all records are maintained in accordance with applicable 
retention schedules as may be established by law.  
 

K.  Disclosures Made From Education Records.  The District will maintain an accurate 
record of all requests for it to disclose information from, or to permit access to, a 
student’s education records and of the information it discloses and persons to whom it 
permits access, with some exceptions listed below.  This record is kept with, but is not a 
part of, each student’s cumulative school records.  It is available only to the record 
custodian, the eligible student, the parent(s) of the student or to federal, state, or local 
officials for the purpose of auditing or enforcing federally supported educational 
programs. 
 
The record includes: 
  

1. The name of the person who or agency which made the request; 
2. In the event of a health and safety emergency, the articulable and significant 

threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals that formed the basis 
for the disclosure; and the parties to whom the agency or institution disclosed the 
information; 
  

3. Whether the request was granted and, if it was, the date access was permitted or 
the disclosure was made; 
  

4. The date on which the person or agency made the request; and 
  

5. The interest which the person or agency has in the information. 
The District will maintain this record as long as it maintains the student’s education 
record.  The records do not include requests for access or information relative to access 
which has been granted to parent(s) of the student or to an eligible student; requests for 
access or access granted to officials of the District who have a legitimate educational 
interest in the student; requests for, or disclosures of, information contained in the 
student’s education records if the request is accompanied by the prior written consent of a 
parent/eligible student or if the disclosure is authorized by such prior consent or for 
requests for, or disclosures of, directory information designated for that student. 
 



JRA - STUDENT RECORDS and ACCESS (FERPA) 

  Page 8 of 8 
 

The records of a request for the correction of an educational record, including any appeal 
of a denial of that request, if the educational record is ultimately corrected shall not be 
treated as part of the educational record of the student and shall be preserved separately 

 

 

District Policy History: 

First Reading: September 14, 2010  
Second Reading: October 12, 2010  
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010  
Reviewed: January 13, 2015, February 17, 2015  
Revised: February 17, 2015  

 

Legal References:   

NH Statutes Description 

RSA 189:1-e Directory Information 

RSA 189:66 Data Inventory and Policies Publication 

RSA 91-A:5,III Exemptions, Pupil Records 

 

Federal Regulations Description 

34 CFR. Part 99 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act Regulations 

 

Federal Statutes Description 

20 U.S.C. §1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 

 
Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy, nor 
should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this policy, 
nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are provided as additional resources 
for those interested in the subject matter of the policy. 



 

  

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, May 13, 2025 3 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 4 

  6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda. 7 
 8 
Present: Dennis Golding, John Zavgren (6:32pm), Michelle Alley, Paul White, Erin Collins, Darlene Anzalone, Diane Foss, and 9 
School Board Student Representative Andie White 10 
 11 
Superintendent Peter Weaver, Principals Tom Ronning and Bridgette Fuller, Assistant Principal Katie Gosselin, Director of 12 
Student Support Services Ned Pratt, Technology Director Nicholas Buroker, Curriculum Coordinator Samantha Dignan, and 13 
Clerk Kristina Fowler 14 
 15 

I. CALL TO ORDER  16 
Chairman Golding called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 17 
 18 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 19 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 20 
 21 

III. STUDENT/STAFF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 22 
Principal Fuller honored several students from FRES as Responsibility CARES Ambassadors. Students include Ethan Gamby, 23 
TJ Guay, Hailey Porter, Lillyanna Robinson, Avery Herlihy, Darcy Conway, Lenaya Batchelder, Katie Rawson, Ephraim 24 
Morgan, Nadine Vanderhoof, and Sage Trudeau. Principal Fuller reviewed the many reasons these students deserve the title of 25 
Responsibility Ambassadors. Students received a round of applause. 26 
 27 

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 28 
Superintendent requested to add Mr. Buroker to request use of unspent funds for Chromebooks to the agenda.  Chairman 29 
Golding suggested it be added as an addendum to the Technology Committee Report.   30 
 31 
A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Collins to accept the adjustments to the agenda. 32 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 33 
 34 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 35 
The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the 36 
meeting asking if they wanted to comment. There were no comments to report. 37 
 38 

VI. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 39 
a. Reports 40 

i. Superintendent’s Report 41 
Superintendent spoke regarding the facilities manager interviews. There were 8 applicants, narrowed down to 5 who were 42 
interviewed by the committee. The committee consisted of the Superintendent, custodians Ann Bird, Pete Stephenson, Principal 43 
Ronning and Ms. LaPlante. Each interview was about 30-35 minutes in length, it was not an easy decision, but the team 44 
deliberated with some disagreements and came down to 2 finalists. The 2 finalists will tour the buildings tomorrow and there is 45 
another opportunity to ask questions and will see if the conclusion aligns with the committee. If all goes well hopefully a 46 
contract will be offered and we can present a candidate to you at the next meeting. He thanked Roger Spurrell for the part-time 47 
work he has been doing outside at the schools. He has been cutting the grass, spreading mulch and has been able to step into that 48 
position and work independently, which he appreciates.  49 

ii. Student School Board Report 50 
Ms. Andie White, MS Board Representative, wanted to bring to the Board’s attention the incident with the Chromebook. She is 51 
aware it was dealt with but wanted to know why there was no evacuation as the room had smoke and it is toxic. The next day it 52 
still smelled like smoke, and we had kids in there. She doesn’t think kids should have been in there because it is very toxic to 53 
animals and humans. She spoke of testing happening in the school and going well. Kids are excited with school ending. There is 54 
a teacher leaving at the end of the year and they have been making a quilt in FACS and cookies and in Ms. Norton’s class they 55 
are making notes. Board members thanked her for asking the question about the Chromebook and Ms. Collins offered to help 56 
with quilt if they needed it. Principal Ronning will address the Chromebook question during his report. 57 

iii. WLCTA Report 58 
Ms. Morgan Kudlich reported on FRES and LCS. 59 

 5th grade will be going on a field trip around the towns of Wilton and Lyndeborough later this month.  60 



 

  

 2nd grade will be going on their yearly trip to Odiorne State Park and the Seacoast Science Center. 61 
 Kindergarten students will have their Step-Up Day at the end of May when they get a chance to visit FRES and meet 62 

the 1st grade teachers. They will also be going on a June field trip to the Friendly Farm to visit the animals!  63 
 1st grade is going on a field trip to the Peabody Mill in Amherst.  64 
 3rd Grade is going on a field trip to the Squam Lakes Natural Science Center in Holderness, NH. 65 
 The entire 1st grade class created a book, and now they are all published authors!  66 
 5th Grade Graduation is June 4th.  67 
 FRES Field day is June 5th, and LCS Field Day is June 6th. Reach out to the PTO if you would like to volunteer for 68 

either event!  69 
 The final musical event of the year is May 29th at 6pm, featuring 4th & 5th grade band students and 3rd-5th grade 70 

singers performing a program of songs about America! 71 
Ms. Erin Rosana reported for WLC. 72 

 Students from grades 10-12 went to Washington DC May 5-8. Thanks to Katy Morshed for making this trip possible 73 
and to Zac Provost, Katie Gosselin, and Alice Bartoldus for chaperoning!  74 

 Junior/Senior Prom was May 10th at Alpine Grove. Thank you to all community members who have donated at 75 
fundraisers to make prom possible!  76 

o Special thanks to Lynne Crouse who was our photographer, as well as the teachers who served as chaperones! 77 
We feel very thankful to have such a supportive community of people to be there for the kids.  78 

 Senior Project presentations are happening Thursday, May 15th. Special thanks to Bill Comerford for leading the 79 
Senior Project program and thanks to all teachers who served as mentors.  80 

 May 16th - Early release PD Day  81 
o A number of teachers across grade levels have volunteered to run PD sessions in their areas of expertise, 82 

including but not limited to the use of Canva to enhance learning, foundational reading skills, and using 83 
Google suite.  84 

 WLC's Spring Concert will be Thursday, May 15th at 6pm. Our theme this year is musical theatre and will feature both 85 
middle school and high school band and chorus. We will also have four seniors presenting solos that they have been 86 
working hard on. Come listen to our talented students in the WLC cafeteria at this free event.  87 

 Senior Awards night is May 22; the Junior class will be hosting a potluck dinner for seniors beforehand.  88 
 Teachers are working hard to ensure that both seniors and other grades are prepared for final exams; seniors take their 89 

exams May 21, 22, and 27th. 90 
Ms. Anzalone voiced appreciation for everyone involved in the DC trip. She suggests announcing it earlier to give more time to 91 
save up for it. It was confirmed senior graduation is May 30 at 7pm, WLC.   Ms. Rosana informed the Board that this will be 92 
their last report, Ms. Rosana and Ms. Kudlich will be stepping down from their WLCTA co-president roles although will 93 
continue to be involved. Ms. Rosana thanked the Board for the good working relationship, and they will be working with the 94 
replacements to continue fostering that relationship between the WLCTA and School Board. They appreciate the community and 95 
being able to share with the Board each month and know they are listening. Chairman Golding thanked them noting it has been a 96 
great experience. 97 

iv. Principal’s Report 98 
Principal Fuller thanked Ms. Alley for giving out the Responsibility Ambassador certificates to the students. She thanked Ms. 99 
Collins for making the “SOS we need substitute” signs. She informed them we have a new substitute applicant! She spoke of 100 
interviews for open positions have started, they have finalists for the counselor position. There has been an increase in behavior 101 
events in the month of April, rising to 21. When she analyzed the data there were 17 students responsible for the 21 behaviors 102 
and 8 are part of the IEP process or 504, all supportive students, the others were learning opportunities. A question was raised if 103 
she had an idea of what triggered those. Principal Fuller spoke of it being a tough time for kids with a week of vacation that 104 
month. Ms. Alley asked if she considered an escalation, which Principal Fuller responded definitely. Ms. Alley asked if it was 105 
the same children in December and November that made up the 17 students. Principal Fuller confirms that 8 have consistently 106 
received supports for their behaviors. She confirms that the number of in and out of school suspensions is higher than last year at 107 
this time. She spoke of summer programs such as theatre camp that still in the works with more information to come. 108 
 109 
Principal Ronning commented that it is amazing how much can happen in a week! He spoke of being proud of the staff in the 2 110 
years he has been here they have worked hard on curriculum. When NEASC came they didn’t have a written curriculum, and we 111 
can now say we have an official curriculum. He sent the Association a follow-up letter to the one in the packet saying they have 112 
achieved this. Assessments are happening and he continues to send out notes of appreciation to students and parents and parents 113 
consistently come to the office with concerns about how to move the school forward. He spoke of receiving a number of calls 114 
from parents, and they also call parents with both positives and concerns. The feedback being received is positive and he 115 



 

  

appreciates this. He spoke to Ms. White’s question about why they did not evacuate during the Chromebook incident. It is 116 
amazing when you look at emergency situations and the question is always how will you react to it. He informs the group the 117 
number one response he gets is to call the office. On the day of the incident, when Mr. Buroker arrived, the smoke was contained 118 
in the room. The windows were open, and it created a vacuum going out the windows and they believed they had it contained. 119 
Mr. Buroker took care of the computer; the remainder of the day was not interrupted. They had some parents call with concerns 120 
and he called the fire chief and explained the situation and how they handled it, and the fire chief said it was handled 121 
appropriately. They are planning further conversations over the summer on how to improve. He notes if it happens again don’t 122 
call the office, go to the nearest pull station to pull it and evacuate the building. He informs the group that at every exit you will 123 
find a pull station. Pull it as you exit and they will deal with it; he would rather have it done that way rather than get a phone call. 124 
He confirms Mr. Buroker took the computer, they have the individual responsible and the situation was handled, and they moved 125 
forward. Ms. Anzalone spoke of the message received being vague that went out and heard about it when her kids got home. She 126 
suggested also sending out something cautionary with more information about potential risks and what to look for. Principal 127 
Ronning confirmed it was part of the TikTok challenge and there have been 20 in NH and considerably more in other states. A 128 
question was raised with the no cell phone policy, did the videographer suffer consequences as well. Principal Ronning confirms 129 
they are not sure which individual actually was responsible for posting it. He confirms they continue to work on the cell phone 130 
concerns. Mr. Zavgren suggested next time there is a fire drill that it is a good time to show students/staff where the pull stations 131 
are. A question was raised whether the students have any idea that it is a discussion at the Board level? Principal Ronning 132 
responded to the most recent incident, the individual was very aware it was coming to the Board. He spoke of bringing students 133 
to the Board last year and when they have discussions with students, they do tell them they will move it up the chain of 134 
command from Superintendent to the Board regarding unacceptable behavior. Often students hear them, but he did have one 135 
student who had to go before the Board say he never thought Principal Ronning would actually do it. When you say something, 136 
you have to mean it and provide a school conducive to learning and to be the best version of self and if not hold them 137 
accountable and educate them for next time. Did they learn from their mistake, do they understand what they did was wrong? It 138 
can be as simple as hanging out in the bathroom or picking on each other, do they understand why it is wrong and that it can 139 
have lasting effects on other students. We are making sure when they leave here, they are productive members of society. The 140 
Superintendent added when Principal Ronning reached out to him to alert him of the incident his only question was are the kids 141 
safe and he said they were and that is our priority. Principal Ronning has more years of experience as a principal than the 142 
Superintendent does and the problem that caused it was contained, and we would deal with the consequences after. Last year 143 
there were thousands of dollars in damage in the bathrooms, we were fed up. He spoke of the way the media is today, they were 144 
afraid kids might go home and do it (Chromebook challenge) and cause damage. In hindsight we should have sent home links 145 
about inhalation as a precautionary measure even though we didn’t think it happened, and we may meet with the Fire Chief and 146 
get some resources for us. If we figure out who did the filming, it will be a real problem for the student as it's a crime and we 147 
would have recommended the police take action. Even in the MS sometimes we do silly things and damaging school property is 148 
a crime in this state. A question was raised if the students must pay for the equipment and how the video happened. Principal 149 
Ronning responded that he doesn’t want to get into too much detail, the video shows the computer smoking not the how to. The 150 
student received suspension and did get an invoice to replace the computer and received 30 hours of community service with our 151 
technology department and he feels the consequences met the incident. It was noted that having to pay for a Chromebook is 152 
written in our Technology Plan and the parents should receive a copy. A brief discussion was had of letting parents know when 153 
something is circulating on social media, so they know what to look for. Principal Ronning agreed and reminds the group that on 154 
the website there is a red triangle where they post alerts at the school, you can get written information there by date. In addition 155 
to that, on that day a 2nd message was sent to parents alerting them to be aware that students can do this with their computer and 156 
to talk to them about it. The worst case-scenario is if the child did it in their house and it led to a house fire. He agrees with the 157 
Superintendent that they could send something out with regard to inhalation/chemicals and what to look for. A question was 158 
raised how often fire safety rules are gone over. Principal Ronning responded, at the beginning of the year and it is done another 159 
time plus, even if we go outside, we are having conversations. We have gone through ALICE, and we talk through all of those 160 
pieces. We had police, EMS, the Fire Chief and all had conversations, and our next meeting is June 23, all making sure we have 161 
a safe environment. Discussions continued about communicating with parents. Assistant Principal Gosselin spoke about the 162 
discipline data she provided saying that the HS looks really good especially it being a tough time for kids and staff. In MS there 163 
was a spike of 21 with some repeat incidents. Typically, it is repeat offenders, class disruptions and theft that made up the 21. A 164 
question was raised what is being stolen. Assistant Principal Gosselin confirms theft of a tennis ball (goes to the bottom of the 165 
chairs) and a teacher’s pen. There was a very limited number of students involved. Principal Ronning spoke to what the 166 
Superintendent had said previously about vandalism and theft that was happening a couple years ago with students wanting to 167 
meet the TikTok challenges. We don’t steal from one another in this school; we support one another and don’t take from one 168 
another. Typically, we use restorative practice but with repeat offenders the consequences get bigger as we go along. 169 
Superintendent spoke about this being a difficult time for students academically the work gets harder as the year is coming to an 170 
end and that speaks to Principal Fuller’s data too as he would expect the incidents would increase. The other piece is some kids 171 
are disappointed that the year is ending and for some kids the school is the only nurturing place they have, and kids can get 172 
anxious with that ending. We try to mitigate it with some of our more fragile students who may manifest some of these things 173 
and we need to be cognizant of it as staff know there may be other things going on. He knows the numbers look high, but 174 
students bring challenges and every school struggles with this and coming out of COVID he is pleased there is a small number of 175 
students and this summer they will dig deeper to see if we could have done anything better. The kids will be with us for a long 176 
time and sometimes the support we have we could miss something or not try something. We will review the discipline data and 177 



 

  

look at the profile of the “highflyers”, so we have some things in place to anticipate the transition back to school in August and 178 
September. Assistant Principal Gosselin confirms both at the MS and HS there were all classroom incidents relating to bullying. 179 
The HS one was founded and required a safe schools report with the police. The MS one was a potential but because we had 180 
some good students coming forward with information it was not. A brief discussion was had regarding summer opportunities for 181 
kids. Assistant Principal Gosselin confirms the musical theater camp they are looking at is for is K-12. They also have Ms. 182 
Bartoldus working on something for mental health but that is not worked out yet. It would be similar to what they did during 183 
COVID with Fun Fridays. They also have competency recovery and ESY. She confirms they are not doing the math or science 184 
summer camps that was done with ESSER money, and the theatre camp will be through a grant. It was suggested to publish what 185 
the libraries have going to inform parents better. Superintendent added they are working with the athletic department and talking 186 
about for a long-time having summer camps and maybe we can start one now. We are looking at all angles to keep kids in the 187 
buildings as much as we can, but it costs money. Kids love the camps, but it is a matter of whether we can pull it off or not. It 188 
was suggested to use kids to volunteer to help. Assistant Principal Gosselin spoke of how amazing the kids were on the DC trip. 189 
The bus driver said they were one of the best groups he has ever taken. In the holocaust museum, at the end some of our kids 190 
said that other school groups didn’t take their hats off and were talking during the clips. They were actually talking to her about 191 
the behaviors of other schools’ children. We have awesome kids! She spoke of the Perry scholarship, which is a big one, it is 192 
awarded to students who uphold usually a C plus average or B minus average throughout their four years. We have 5 recipients 193 
this year totaling $65,000 per year. It is being awarded to Jared Clark, Mia Gorman, Noah Jaffy, Lily Gibson and Christian 194 
Balusek. It is amazing because we compete with Milford for that scholarship and seeing it go to 5 recipients is really great. Earth 195 
Day was a huge success and step up night is June 3. She gave a shout out to Ms. Erin Rosana who runs NHS, has been Union 196 
President and doing all these things behind the scenes. She is a class advisor, was in charge of prom and not for the 1st time 197 
either. She organizes the upcoming France and England trip. She can’t even tell you how much she is involved in and not seeing 198 
her every month here will be rough, but she is glad she is taking somewhat of a break. Thank you to Ms. Rosana! A question was 199 
raised if on the DC trip they meet anyone from Congress. Assistant Principal Gosselin responded no but when someone walked 200 
by Mr. Provost would quiz them about who they thought it was. Superintendent said that it is a goal they have, there is a program 201 
called Close Up. First, they needed to break the ice and get the trip back on. Parents invest in this and kids, the next step is how 202 
to make it better with something like meeting Congress members and meeting other groups and other ways to kick it up a notch 203 
academically. Ms. Collins spoke of a program called Democracy Summer and if there is interest, she can see if she can get a 204 
meet and greet arranged. Ms. Anzalone suggested seeing if there is a way to partner with other schools to decrease the cost by 205 
sharing a bus etc.  206 

v. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 207 
Ms. Dignan reported PD is coming up on Friday. Ms. Rosana is teaching Canva, Ms. Bertoncini is doing CPR training, it will be 208 
an exciting day. Over the summer, teachers at FRES are going to Responsive Classroom training and the HS social studies 209 
teachers including Ms. Rosana, have signed up to learn about the new minimum standards and what we need to do as a social 210 
studies department to makes sure we are hitting all of those new standards. The NHSAS and iReady testing are all underway and 211 
some grades are completed with all of them. Ms. Kudlich and Ms. Anderson are going to work together to do the week-log 212 
theater program, we are in the process of getting funding for that and everything squared away. Ms. Bartoldus is working on a 213 
mental health program for incoming 6th and 12th graders; it is not finalized as of yet. Ms. Anzalone thanked her for the 214 
curriculum piece. She asked for several years to see it and now it is posted. Superintendent spoke to that, when he came here 5 215 
years ago he was astonished because he didn’t know what the teachers were teaching, there were a lot of gaps and incompletes. 216 
Teachers were working doubly hard but were not making any headway. He is happy to say that with the right staff and 217 
curriculum coordinator we can finally check that box. A lot of credit goes to Ms. Dignan for sticking with it and not waiting for 218 
the next Superintendent to come because it was not a priority.  219 
  220 

VII. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 221 
Chairman Golding reviewed we have 2 openings for board members; one is for Facilities Committee and the other is on the 222 
Strategic Planning Committee. Ms. Alley agreed to be on the Facilities Committee for now and Ms. Anzalone asked to continue 223 
on the Strategic Planning Committee. 224 
 225 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Foss and SECONDED by Mr. White to approve Ms. Alley to be on the Facilities Committee and 226 
Ms. Anzalone to be on the Strategic Planning Committee. 227 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 228 
 229 
Chairman Golding asked Ms. Alley, Mr. Zavgren and Ms. Collins to reach out to Ms. LaPlante and the Superintendent and 230 
schedule a meeting for the Facilities Committee. Ms. Anzalone asked if there should be another community member to take over 231 
her position as community member on the Strategic Planning Committee. Chairman Golding responded we can ask for a 4th and 232 
run an ad for it but we can get the committee going anyway. Superintendent added they can get the Facilities Committee going 233 
and Mr. Allen can sit in on the 1st meeting. Mr. Allen in the audience agreed. He is already on the Strategic Planning Committee. 234 
Ms. Anzalone asked if we could open the committee up to students. Superintendent responded he has never seen students on the 235 
Board committees, he doesn’t want to say no but it is a high-level conversation but is not opposed to it. Chairman Golding asked 236 
if it is something the student board representatives can talk to their peers about. Superintendent suggested having that 237 
stakeholder group with a couple of students in leadership roles such as class president or NHS, maybe they are not standing 238 
members and are invited when certain topics are being discussed. He is not opposed to student’s having a voice. There was a 239 



 

  

brief discussion about this including when we talk about sending students out of the district to other schools he wants to hear 240 
from the student leaders in the school who can speak for the students or student athletes maybe going to a school that has cuts in 241 
athletics, how does that make them feel or their siblings behind them. He thinks that conversation is really important. The Board 242 
was asked if there is any objection to having the Superintendent speak with Principal Ronning and Assistant Principal Gosselin 243 
about this. No objection heard. Chairman asked the board members of both the Facilities Committee and Strategic Planning 244 
Committee to work with Ms. LaPlante and the Superintendent to schedule meetings. 245 
 246 

VIII. PRINCIPAL INTERVIEW PROCESS 247 
Superintendent reviewed the proposed process. Currently there are 8 applicants, and he is shooting for the interviews to happen 248 
on May 22 or May 28. They feel they can narrow down the 8 to 3 strong candidates to interview, set up a schedule of 2 hours to 249 
include 3 rotations with 3 groups of teacher leadership at FRES which Principal Fuller would facilitate, the 2nd group would 250 
consist of board members and PTO members facilitated by Ms. Dignan and the 3rd group would be administration leadership 251 
facilitated by Principal Ronning. A handler will be assigned to each one to show them where to go and track the time. He spoke 252 
of the importance of those running on time as there is a ripple effect if they run over. It needs to be well-organized, and 253 
candidates need to rotate at the appropriate times. Everyone will have the opportunity to list their strengths and weaknesses and 254 
narrow them down to 2 finalists. A community meet and greet would be held for the community, ask questions and provide 255 
written comments. Hopefully we can have a nomination for the June 10 board meeting to present. He asked if the Board wanted 256 
to be more involved than that, he has seen the Boards interview and choose the candidate and is open to ideas on how they want 257 
to do it. If they are OK with the process he presented, they can get started looking at candidates tomorrow and start making calls. 258 
If the Board would like to choose board members to be in one of the groups, he asks that it be done tonight. He then suggested 259 
instead sending all the members the date and time for the interviews and as many of them can come should and those who 260 
cannot, can meet the finalists at the community night. The interviews time will be 5:30pm-7:30pm or 6pm-8pm. He wants to be 261 
cognizant of staff and families who are all out at this time of year. Chairman Golding asked if any board members volunteer, 262 
Chairman Golding, Ms. Foss and Ms. Collins volunteered. Superintendent confirms there would be 3 candidates to interview, 263 
and the candidates would rotate between the 3 groups and ask questions to them as a team. Let’s assume all board members will 264 
be available and anyone who can attend will. Chairman Golding asked if there is any objection to the process, no objection 265 
heard. 266 
 267 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 268 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 269 

A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve the minutes of April 22, 2025, as written. 270 
Voting: six ayes, one abstention from Ms. Anzalone, motion carried. 271 
 272 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 273 
i. Technology Committee 274 

Chairman Golding reported the committee met last Thursday, Chairman is Mr. Zavgren, and he is Vice Chair.  Mr. Zavgren 275 
reported the committee discussed migrating our domain, we can repost or transfer our domain name instead of winging it 276 
ourselves, we can join a bigger group, a .GOV domain and can be SAU63.NH.gov vs. SAU63.org which sounds like a great 277 
idea because of one of the attack services for a domain is the registration information and you want to make sure that is locked 278 
down nice and tight. He spoke of it being a bad idea to expect every SAU in NH to have somebody on staff who could 279 
administrate that, it takes specialized skills. He thinks it is better if we move over to that government domain from our own 280 
domain and that frees up Mr. Buroker to do other more important things. He spoke of the downside being everyone’s email 281 
address changes and any embedded links on the website will be broken, there is some pain involved but he thinks it’s a good 282 
idea. The other thing they talked about is locking down our website and removing a lot of details to make things a little bit 283 
clearer. There are basically 2 things you do, you read it, and you write it. There should be a handful of trusted people that write 284 
it and thinks we want to make sure that those accounts use multifactor authentication for access. The default which is a bad idea 285 
is to use a password to identify yourself, instead use a cell phone or have rotating passcodes with identifier and should have as 286 
many as can stand. They didn’t talk about this in the meeting, but it occurred to him to ask if we move our domain to the .GOV 287 
domain who administrates the mail gateway when our mail comes through the .GOV domain and is that mail gateway effective 288 
in bringing spam down to a dull roar? He knows a lot of ransomware attacks are caused by phishing emails and if we have 1 or 289 
2 really smart effective people working on keeping the spam out, that is probably better than a hundred different administrators 290 
all over the state trying to do the same thing. He also wonders what our ransomware policy for the school is. In case there is a 291 
ransomware attack what do we do? A discussion came up regarding Chromebooks. Chairman Golding explained it was about 292 
the cost for Chromebooks increasing between now and July and we will need 70 Chromebooks and may want to look at 293 
purchasing them now before that cost rises and use unspent funds. We will be trying to avoid the large increase in the budget 294 
next year. Mr. Buroker said that a lot has changed in a week. We were looking at an increase of 145% a week ago. When he 295 
made the budget, he didn’t expect to pay more than he budgeted and with that in mind he brought the issue to the Technology 296 
Committee and the Superintendent suggested using unspent funds to get ahead of the price increase. Since then, the tariffs for 297 
computer chips have gone down and now we are only looking at a 30% increase. We need 70 student devices and 10 teacher 298 
Chromebooks for next year at a total with licenses of $23,429.50. He thinks now is the time to purchase and leaves it up to the 299 
Board if they want to go for the full amount or just the 30% increase to prevent a budget overrun next year. He asks the Board 300 
to allocate unspent funds for the Chromebooks and associated license costs.  The 30% cost would be $7,029 (vs. $23,429.50). 301 



 

  

The Superintendent added this would be for Mr. Buroker to purchase now with the $7,029 using unspent funds if we have them 302 
to offset the increase next year. A question was raised how much the budget is. Mr. Buroker responded, the lines total $33,800 303 
but that includes other items for replacement equipment. Ms. Anzalone suggested buying them now to save money next year as 304 
something else could come up, we don’t know. Superintendent wanted it to be clear that they are only asking for the 30% 305 
increase of $7,029 to offset the increase next year so that we buy the rest and stay within budget. If it goes beyond the 30%, we 306 
may not be able to purchase all we need. Superintendent spoke about being in an interesting spot this year with the fund 307 
balance. Typically, we have challenges in staffing and the majority of the fund balance is from salary and benefits with unfilled 308 
positions and being thoughtful with our spending. We are now really tight. He limits the request to only $7,029 and if Ms. 309 
LaPlante comes back and says we have additional savings that would be another discussion. He recommends waiting until June 310 
10 to see where we are with the operating budget and move forward with the $7,029 now. We are fighting against the surplus in 311 
the warehouses now and it is a limited amount sitting in there and Mr. Buroker is trying to get them at this price point before 312 
they sell out. It was noted it is only for 90 days and who knows what will happen next. There was a brief discussion. 313 
Superintendent reiterated he is only asking for $7,029, if we find our funds are robust then we will come back with any 314 
additional from Mr. Buroker, right now the only thing on the table is $7,029. If approved Mr. Buroker will start right away 315 
making the purchases. Chairman Golding commends Mr. Buroker for looking into that because at the technology meeting, we 316 
were talking about $23,000 and now it is only $7,029. 317 
 318 

A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Collins to authorize spending $7,029 using unspent funds for the 319 
30% increase in Chromebooks.  320 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 321 
 322 

XI. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 323 
a. Resignation-Danyel Chapman-IT Technician 324 

Superintendent reviewed the resignation. 325 
 326 
A brief discussion was had regarding opportunities for IT internships. Mr. Buroker currently has a student intern who will be 327 
graduating. Superintendent has suggested that perhaps he could come back and work in the summers. Chairman Golding noted 328 
there is support from the Board to float idea to the intern. Ms. Anzalone asked about opportunities to work with schools to do 329 
internships. Mr. Buroker spoke regarding some of the issues with that and the Superintendent added, often it is working with 330 
confidential information, and we want to be sure if we have an internship program which he would be in favor of that we need 331 
controls around security. Mr. Buroker has a potential student he is looking to replace the one graduating. It was noted if we could 332 
continue to have the students help maintain the Chromebooks it makes sense. 333 
 334 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS  335 
The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the 336 
meeting asking if they wanted to comment. There were no comments to report.  337 
 338 

XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 339 
Ms. Alley congratulated the Responsibility Ambassadors; it is difficult to develop those skills and standing out for it is amazing. 340 
She recognized Ms. Andie White for bringing up the concerns of the MS to the Board. She has brought up concerns of the MS 341 
twice, it shows she is interested in school and wants to see it succeed. She thanked Principal Fuller, Principal Ronning and 342 
Assistant Principal Gosselin for constantly stiving to make our schools amazing! It is an amazing community for her kids and 343 
gives a shout-out to them for doing it. 344 
 345 
Mr. Zavgren thanked Mr. Buroker for doing a great job. 346 
 347 
Ms. Collins looks forward to the summer programing and thanked those for working on it. Don’t hesitate to reach out to her for 348 
help if needed. 349 
 350 
Ms. Anzalone echoed the congratulations Ms. Alley voiced and thanked the PTO for the work done on Teacher Appreciation 351 
Week especially Mandy and Crystal. Ms. Rosana and Ms. Kudlich, great work in the WLCTA, it was great working with them 352 
on negotiations. She gave a shoutout to Ms. Rosana who is amazing and for putting up with her kids, being a class advisor. She 353 
does a lot now and is doing NHS and wanted to recognize her.  354 
 355 
Chairman Golding congratulated the 5 students receiving the Perry Scholarship. He wanted to reiterate what Mr. Zavgren said 356 
about Mr. Buroker finding savings from a week ago to now when it was 5 figures and now it has dropped to 4, it will look good 357 
to the community next year and he appreciates that as a taxpayer. He thinks all was covered and he spoke about getting our kids 358 
to not do the Chromebook challenge, it is hurtful and could have been a lot worse. 359 
  360 

XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 361 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Anzalone and SECONDED by Ms. Collins to enter Non-Public Session to review the non-public 362 
minutes RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 8:32pm. 363 



 

  

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried. 364 
 365 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 366 
The Board entered public session at 8:47pm.    367 
 368 
Superintendent encouraged members to attend graduation.  369 
 370 
A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) by Ms. Foss and SECONDED by Ms. Alley. 371 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 372 
 373 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 374 
A MOTION was made by Mr. White and SECONDED by Ms. Collins to adjourn the Board meeting at 8:53pm. 375 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 376 
 377 
Respectfully submitted, 378 
Kristina Fowler 379 
 380 



ADB - DRUG FREE WORKPLACE & DRUG FREE SCHOOLS

Category:  Required Related Policies:

The Wilton-Lyndeborough School District will provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with the

Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1988 and Amendments of 1989 (41 USC Section 701

Et. Seq.). In compliance with statutory requirements, the District will:

A. Drug-Free Workplace

a. All District workplaces are drug- and alcohol-free. All employees and contracted

personnel are prohibited from:

i. Unlawfully manufacturing, dispensing, distributing, possessing, using, or

being under the influence of any controlled substance or drug while on or in

the workplace, including employees possessing a "medical marijuana" card.

ii. Distributing, consuming, using, possessing, or being under the influence of

alcohol while on or in the workplace.

b. For purposes of this policy, a "controlled substance or drug" means and includes any

controlled substance or drug defined in the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §

812(c), or New Hampshire Controlled Drug Act RSA 318-B.

c. For purposes of this policy, "workplace" shall mean the site for the performance of

work, and will include at a minimum any District building or grounds owned or

operated by the District, any school-owned vehicle, and any other school-approved

vehicle used to transport students to and from school or school activities. It shall also

include off-school property during any school-sponsored or school-approved activity,

event or function such as a field trip or athletic event where students are under the

jurisdiction, care or control of the District.

d. As a condition of employment, each employee and all contracted personnel will:

i. Abide by the terms of this policy respecting a drug- and alcohol-free

workplace, including any administrative rules, regulations or procedures

implementing this policy; and

ii. Notify his or her supervisor in writing of his or her conviction under any

criminal drug statute, for a violation occurring on District premises or while

performing work for the District, no later than five (5) days after such

conviction.

e. In order to make employees aware of dangers of drug and alcohol abuse, the District

will endeavor to:

i. Provide each employee with a copy of the District drug- and alcohol-free

workplace policy;

ii. Post notice of the District drug- and alcohol-free workplace policy in a place

where other information for employees is posted;

Page 1 of 4



ADB - DRUG FREE WORKPLACE & DRUG FREE SCHOOLS

iii. Establish a drug-free awareness program to educate employees about the

dangers of drug abuse and drug use in the workplace, the specifics of this

policy, including, the consequences for violating the policy, and any

information about available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation,

reentry, or other employee-assistance programs.

B. District Action Upon Violation of Policy

An employee who violates this policy may be subject to disciplinary action; up to and

including termination of employment. Alternatively, the Board may require an employee to

successfully complete an appropriate drug- or alcohol-abuse, employee-assistance

rehabilitation program.

The Board will take disciplinary action with respect to an employee convicted of a drug

offense in the workplace, within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of a conviction. Should

District employees or contracted personnel be engaged in the performance of work under a

federal contract or grant, or under a state contract or grant, the Superintendent will notify the

appropriate state or federal agency from which the District receives contract or grant moneys

of an employee/contracted personnel's conviction, within ten (10) days after receiving notice

of the conviction.

The processes for disciplinary action shall be those provided generally to other misconduct

for the employee/contractor personnel as may be found in applicable collective bargaining

agreements, individual contracts, School Board policies, contractor agreements, and or

governing law. Disciplinary action should be applied consistently and fairly with respect to

employees of the District and/or contractor personnel as the case may be.

C. Drug-Free School Zone

Pursuant to New Hampshire's "Drug-Free School Zone" law (RSA Chapter 193-B), it is

unlawful for any person to manufacture, sell prescribe administer, dispense, or possess with

intent to sell, dispense or compound any controlled drug or its analog, within a "drug-free

school zone". The Superintendent is directed to assure that the District is and remains in

compliance with the requirements of RSA 193-B, I, and N.H. Ed. Part 316 with respect to

establishment, mapping and signage of the drug-free zone around each school of the District.

Page 2 of 4



ADB - DRUG FREE WORKPLACE & DRUG FREE SCHOOLS

D. Implementation and Review

a. The Superintendent is directed to promulgate administrative procedures and rules

necessary and appropriate to implement the provisions of this policy.

b. In order to maintain a drug-free workplace, the Superintendent will perform a

biennial review of the implementation of this policy. The review shall be designed to:

i. determine and assure compliance with the notification requirements of

section A.5.a, b and c;

ii. determine the effectiveness of programs established under paragraph A.5.c

above;

iii. ensure that disciplinary sanctions are consistently and fairly enforced; and

(iv) and identify any changes required, if any.

Note: ADB replaces GBEC

District Policy History:

First Reading: September 14, 2010
Second Reading: October 12, 2010
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010
Reviewed: January 4, 2022, January 18, 2022
Revised: February 1, 2022

Legal References:

NH Statutes Description

RSA 318-B Controlled Drug Act

RSA Chapter 193-B Drug Free School Zones

NH Dept of Ed
Regulation Description

N.H. Code Admin. Rules Ed 316 Procedure to mark drug-free school zones

Page 3 of 4



ADB - DRUG FREE WORKPLACE & DRUG FREE SCHOOLS

Federal Statutes Description

21 USC § 812 Schedules of Controlled Substances

41 U.S.C. §101, et. seq. Drug-free workplace requirements for Federal contractors, and Federal
grant recipients

Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy,
nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this
policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are provided as additional
resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

Page 4 of 4



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical 
thinking and responsible citizenship. 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Amanda Guay 
FROM: Peter Weaver 
DATE: May 15, 2025 
RE: Resignation 
 
 
In accordance with Policy GCQC: 
 
“A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board.  
 
I am in receipt of your email dated May 12 that you intend to resign your position as Instructional 
Aide effective May 16, 2025.  
 

 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 
  

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 

              Peter Weaver                                                     Ned Pratt                                                        Kristie LaPlante                     
Superintendent of Schools                           Director of Student Support Services                   Business Administrator           

  



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical 
thinking and responsible citizenship. 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: The WLC School Board 
FROM: Peter Weaver 
DATE: May 27, 2025 
RE: Nomination for Facilities Manager 
 
 
Please accept this as the nomination for Bemjamin Hofstetter as the Facilities Manager for our 
District. Mr. Hofstetter has been a Union Tradesman and certified carpenter for 10 years. He has 
owned/operated Cowboy Creations, a general construction company ranging from handyman 
services such as basic plumbing and electrical fixture installation to general contractor for general 
residential remodel, specializing in custom bathroom and basement improvement projects. He has 
experience managing projects, procurement, maintenance, negotiating vendor contracts, 
coordinating repairs, inventory management, streamlining operations and implementing cost-
savings initiatives. His references describe him as dependable, reliable, confident, and capable 
with the ability to adapt rapidly to changing situations.  
 
There were eight applicants for this position. I recommend a motion to appoint Benjamin 
Hofstetter as the Facilities Manager for our District with a salary of $65,000. 
 
 

 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 
  

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 

              Peter Weaver                                                     Ned Pratt                                                        Kristie LaPlante                     
Superintendent of Schools                           Director of Student Support Services                   Business Administrator           

  



 

 

BENJAMIN HOFSTETTER 
Lyndeborough NH | 603.325.0957 | Bronco10787@aol.com |  

Certified carpenter of 10 years. Rounded experience within commercial building systems 
with an emphasis on material procurement and inventory management under the carpentry 
umbrella. 

EXPERIENCE 

M A Y 2 0 1 1 -  
FE B  20 2 0   
 

  WAREHOUSE MANAGER, ALL INTERIORS 
Procured tools and materials for projects and delivered to appropriate points of contact. 
Coordinated building repairs and maintenance as necessary. Coordinated with field operators for 
maintenance on equipment. Trained drivers and warehouse workers on processes and procedures 
of inventory management and warehouse scheduling. 

   

AP R I L  2 0 2 0 - N O V  
20 2 0   

  CARPENTER, NEW ENGLAND FINISH SYSTEMS 
Framed walls, installed drywall and finish systems 

   

J A N  2 0 2 1 -  
S E P  2 0 2 2  
 

  CARPENTER, FAZIO CONSTRUCTION  
Framed walls, installed drywall 

   

M A R 2 02 3 -  
DE C  2 0 2 3  

  CARPENTER, CHARLES SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT 
Framed walls, installed drywall and finish systems, 

    
M A R 2 02 4 -  
J A N  2 0 2 5  
 

  CARPENTER, DB CONTRACTORS 
Installed finish cabinetry and millwork. Managed procurement, installation and maintenance on 
safety concerns and general conditions on jobsite.  

  

                      COWBOY CREATIONS  
M A R 2 02 0-                    Owner/operator general construction company ranging from handyman services such as basic                                     
 plumbing and electrical fixture installation to general contractor for general residential remodel,    
 specializing in custom bathroom and basement improvement projects. 
 
  
 
   

EDUCATION  
J U NE  2 0 XX    NECTS,  MILLBURY MASSACHUSSETTES  

 Journeyman carpenter certificate 
Osha 10 
Osha 30 
CPR/AED certified 

   

   


	WLC Board Agenda 5.27.25
	SSS Report 5.27.25
	General Assurances 5.21.25
	GBCD-R 1st read 5.27.25
	IHBA-R 1st Read 5.27.25
	JRA-1st Read 5.27.25
	WLC Draft School Board Meeting Minutes 5.13.25
	ADB-Drug Free workplace and Drug Free Schools 1st read 5.27.25
	Resignation A. Guay
	Ben Hofstetter Nomination Facilities Manager
	Ben Hofstetter Nomination Facilities Manager
	Ben Hofstetter Resume


